




  Town of Mashpee                                     Planning Board  
                      16 Great Neck Road North  
                      Mashpee, Massachusetts 02649 

1 
 

Mashpee Planning Board 
 Minutes of Meeting 

Wednesday, March 06, 2024 at 4:30p.m. 
Mashpee Public Library – Event Room  

64 Steeple Street  
Mashpee, Ma 02649 

 
Recorded by Mashpee TV 

Call-in Conference Number: (508)-539-1400 x 8585 
Streamed on the Town of Mashpee Website: 

https://www.mashpeema.gov/channel -8 
 

Present: Vice Chair Mary Waygan, Dennis Balzarini, Dale Oakley, Mike Richardson 

Also Present: Evan Lehrer – Town Planner  

Absent: Karen Faulkner, Rob Hansen  

CALL TO ORDER 
Vice Chair Waygan called the meeting of the Planning Board to order at 4:30p.m. The Pledge 
of Allegiance was recited.  
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES – February 21, 2024  
Ms. Waygan commented on page 5, third to last paragraph, she would like to add that the 
town’s goal is for 10% affordable housing, so for a development of 12 units it would be 
reasonable to ask for 1 affordable unit.   
 
Mr. Lehrer then talked about mitigation matching impact in the next paragraph, that any dollar 
value assigned for mitigation purposes should be reasonably related to impacts to actual 
development. Corrections made.  
 
MOTION: 
Mr. Balzarini made a motion to accept the February 21, 2024 meeting minutes as 
amended. Seconded by Mr. Oakley. All in favor.  
 
NEW BUSINESS  
Vote to set public hearing date for a Special Permit application submitted by Joao 
Junqueira for approval to construct a 4,752 sq. ft. commercial building for retail sales of 
water related products with indoor and outdoor storage at property addressed as 474 
Main Street (Map 27-21-A) and 21 Ashumet Road (Map 27-21-B)  

https://www.mashpeema.gov/channel%20-8


  Town of Mashpee                                     Planning Board  
                      16 Great Neck Road North  
                      Mashpee, Massachusetts 02649 

2 
 

Ms. Waygan is an abutter to this proposal so she is going to recuse herself from this matter 
and ask the Clerk set a date for this Public Hearing. Mr. Lehrer also noted a conflict of interest 
with the applicant where he is removing himself as well. There is a recommended Public 
Hearing date for the first meeting in April which is the 3rd at 7:10p.m.  
 
MOTION:  
Mr. Balzarini made a motion to set a Public Hearing date for April 3, 2024 at 7:10p.m. 
Seconded by Mr. Oakley. All in favor. Ms. Waygan recused herself.  
 
News on JBCC  
Ms. Waygan handed around a flyer for Town Planner to scan in and send to everyone, this has 
the address to sign up for updates. The Military Bond Bill of 2014 gave Mass Development first 
right of refusal for surplus state land on the base. Mass Development can take that surplus 
land and put housing on it. The concept of the base was to house military families and 
veterans and the whole concept was they work there and were given housing so they wouldn’t 
have to commute. Now if they aren’t using up our housing supply, and they are housed on 
Cape, it frees up units here. The land in Mashpee is federally owned. The state owned part is 
mostly in Bourne.  
 
OLD BUSINESS 
Continue review of draft implementation table of the Local Comprehensive Plan Update: 
Municipal Buildings, Facilities, and Services; Natural Resources; and any other section 
time allows  
It was noted Department Heads need to rebuild the list of actions. One thing he has been 
trying to focus on is making sure the goals are truly aspirational statements like having the 
most accessible open spaces or the most walked trails in MA.   
 
Mr. Lehrer would like the Board to consider how much repetition and overlap we want to cross 
implement. We intentionally separated Water Quality from Natural Resources. With that being 
said, many actions are solely focused on water.  
 
Ms. Waygan would like to cross reference and put in parentheses at the end where else it is 
located, it can be tweaked later.  
 
Mr. Lehrer feels removing the redundancies may be a better option but then it might be lacking 
content in other areas.  
 
Municipal Buildings Facilities and Services  



  Town of Mashpee                                     Planning Board  
                      16 Great Neck Road North  
                      Mashpee, Massachusetts 02649 

3 
 

Goal FS1: Cultivate healthy and productive civil discourse by maximizing inclusion and 
diversity in civic life. The policy related to this would be promoting intergovernmental 
coordination with the Tribe, county’s Human Rights Commission, the Mashpee High School’s 

Human Rights Club, and our own Mashpee Inclusion and Diversity Committee. Then an action 
would be that town boards and committees are provided with ongoing DEI resources and 
trainings.  
 
Mr. Lehrer would like to reach out to these specific groups and the Tribe to see what they are 
working on, what they could be doing, or what we need from one another to get things 
accomplished.  
 
Goal FS2: Provide the safest, most equitable, and technologically advanced municipal and 
school facilities that nurture community and civic engagement for all ages and meet the needs 
of projected student populations to maximize student potential and educational opportunities.  
 
Goal 3 was condensed into Goal 2.  
 
Ms. Waygan wanted to note there has been talk about sharing facilities and services with the 
Tribe and she would like that to be captured as that could create opportunities like services the 
county offers or emergency disaster response.  
 
Mr. Oakley stated encourage increased coordination with the county and Tribe for sharing 
facilities and services.  
 
Ms. Waygan would like to update the town’s meeting room and public access technology.  
 
Goal FS4: Make Mashpee the safest possible community where all community members can 
thrive without fear of crime or suffering, fire, or other man-made or natural disasters. This is a 
Public Safety related goal.  
 
Ms. Waygan commented that these service departments need to have adequate resources to 
address resident’s needs. For Human Services, we need to enhance or maintain any and all 
supports for public health and wellness. This is a cross sector collaboration with substance 
abuse prevention, homelessness, and childcare. Some actions would be funding and staffing 
for human resource programs that address homelessness and/or substance abuse. We need 
to support the increasing of childcare facilities, specifically fund and expand the town’s 

childcare. She would also like some action steps about community policing.  
 
Goal FS5: Maintain financial stability and AAA bond rating.  



  Town of Mashpee                                     Planning Board  
                      16 Great Neck Road North  
                      Mashpee, Massachusetts 02649 

4 
 

Ms. Waygan would like a policy that considers the financial impacts and benefits of town 
programs and services. One action would be to make sure our Finance Department is staffed 
and FinCom has the resources it needs. We also need to have a robust Capital Improvement 
Plan process.  
 
Goal FS6: Nurture and enhance continued education and life-long learning for Mashpee’s adult 

community. It was mentioned this could go under previously merged Goals FS2 and 3.  
 
Ms. Waygan added a policy to make educational opportunities accessible to all. An action 
could be to increase the budget, they often do 6 week classes. We have a lot of educational 
programs at the Public Library, we should support and increase those. She suggested they try 
to attract other educational opportunities into Mashpee via Woods Hole, CCCC, Local theatre 
and art centers, the Chamber of Commerce, and other community partners.  
 
Goal FS7: Ensure Mashpee community members are as physically, mentally, and emotionally 
healthy as possible. 
 
Mr. Lehrer noted this was a cross sector departmental goal.  
 
Ms. Waygan noted supporting the Recreation Department opportunities as well as the Human 
Service Department programs. She suggested reaching out to Community Health Center to 
inquire about an action plan they might have for the town. It may be as simple as all local 
residents can go there and apply for Mass Health.  
 
Mr. Oakley commented to support initiatives put forth by the Recreation Department.   
 
Ms. Waygan also suggested to ensure health pamphlets are available at Town Hall or all 
public buildings.  
 
Mr. Lehrer added awareness of where and who their local medical resources are.  
 
Goal FS9: Provide the most accessible and interconnected trail network in the Commonwealth 
throughout Mashpee’s conservation lands to maximize safe enjoyment of nature and the 
outdoors. 
 
Goal FS10: Improve, maintain, and monitor Mashpee’s ponds, coastal waterways, and 

coastline in pristine condition that allows all users and adjacent property owners to benefit from 
its natural beauty without conflict.  



  Town of Mashpee                                     Planning Board  
                      16 Great Neck Road North  
                      Mashpee, Massachusetts 02649 

5 
 

Mr. Richardson noted some natural beauty is not there or is inaccessible, we don’t want to 

maintain and monitor, we want to improve.  
 
Goal FS11: Be a leader in sustainable solid waste and wastewater management to remove or 
mitigate impacts of hazardous waste and nutrient pollution on natural systems. Mr. Lehrer will 
work on this, possibly tweak the use of ‘be a leader’.  
 
Goal FS12: Make Mashpee the most operationally efficient municipality in the Commonwealth.  
 
Policy FS1: Invest in new technologies or best practices at the Mashpee Transfer Station that 
maximize operational efficiency and minimize potential environmental impacts of the facility’s 

operation.  
 
Policy FS2: Continue to invest in a community policing model that protects Mashpee residents, 
visitors, and their property from crime whilst nurturing the public’s trust. Mr. Lehrer will be 
looking to the Police Department for specifics of community policing.  
 
Policy FS3: Ensure that the Police Department and Fire Department staffing levels and 
facilities can appropriately accommodate consistent enforcement of local, state, and federal 
laws, rapid response times, high quality care and protection, and minimize loss and suffering 
due to crime, fire, and other man-made and natural disasters.  Mr. Lehrer will reach out to both 
department Chiefs for input.  
 
Ms. Waygan asked for a similar statement involving Harbor Master, Enforcement/Inspection 
Services i.e. Building Commissioner, and Animal Control.  Actions are staffing related, in the 
Hazard Mitigation Plan it discusses hiring requisite number of staffing. It also discussed a Fire 
House in the north part of town.  
 
Policy FS4: Increase collaboration and communications internally between the Town 
departments and externally with the broader community by maximizing in-person and virtual 
opportunities for civic engagement.  
 
Ms. Waygan would like to acknowledge the technology investments buildings/meeting rooms 
require as well as expanding our civic reach for communication methods.  
 
Policy FS5: Enhance, maintain, and/or provide any and all needed municipal infrastructure and 
services needed to support the local economy, mobility of people and goods, the natural 
environment, and public health and wellness.  
 



  Town of Mashpee                                     Planning Board  
                      16 Great Neck Road North  
                      Mashpee, Massachusetts 02649 

6 
 

Ms. Waygan commented infrastructure made her think about Mass Development and the 
importance of knowing what funding sources and grants are available to us. 
 
Policy FS6: Ensure that the development and operation of school facilities and programs are 
coordinated to the maximum extent possible with other municipal agencies. Mr. Lehrer will 
reach out to the schools for further inquiry/input.  
 
Policy FS7: Maximize non-property tax funding sources for new municipal buildings and 
facilities as well as school buildings and facilities.  
 
Policy FS8: Foster cross-sector collaboration and cooperation to develop a common 
understanding of health and human service needs, priorities, and appropriate resource 
allocation to critical areas of need such as substance abuse programs, homelessness 
prevention, child care, etc.  
 
Policy FS9: Maintain and enhance cross-sector collaborations with educational institutions and 
research organizations to bolster programs for water quality sampling and reporting.  
 
Ms. Waygan noted an action to coordinate with the Tribe, Association to Preserve Cape Cod, 
as well as neighboring towns, 
 
Policy FS10: Prioritize collaboration and communication with the Mashpee Wampanoag Tribe 
on all matters.  
  
An action would be to hold quarterly meetings between Select Board and Tribal Counsel. Mr. 
Lehrer noted the shared housing goals and natural resources, where there is already 
collaboration with departments. This section should cover municipal government at its highest 
level.  
 
Ms. Waygan stated the Community Preservation Committee should be checking in with the 
Tribe to see if they want a parcel that is presented. The Planning Board gets notices if there 
are zoning changes in neighboring towns. Whenever an application comes through the CPC 
one extra copy is sent to Tribal Headquarters, maybe they have an interest.  
 
Policy FS11: Ensure critical facilities are located near populated centers while promoting 
equitable access to underserved communities. Mr. Lehrer elaborated that ‘critical facilities’ is a 
technical term that exists in the Hazard Mitigation Plan, it is important to contemplate critical 
facilities, it gets at emergency management.  
 



  Town of Mashpee                                     Planning Board  
                      16 Great Neck Road North  
                      Mashpee, Massachusetts 02649 

7 
 

For example, the Children’s Museum is a critical facility, it’s out of the flood zone. More 
examples are grocery stores, Senior Center, cell towers, damns, and culverts. It’s important to 
maintain relative to emergency management, he is unsure of the verbiage.  

 
Policy FS12: Increase the supply and availability of public meeting space for Town Boards and 
Committees, working groups, and for Mashpee-based non-profit service organizations such as 
Girl Scouts, Boy Scouts, etc.  
 
Ms. Waygan noted the facilities that exist are closed in the evenings. All groups don’t have 

access to reasonably priced rooms. Building a Community Center is super expensive. We 
need to figure out a way to give people more access. Volunteer groups have to rely on 
churches for the space. An action step would be to build a Community Center. She would like 
to say make more spaces available in off hours through provision of staffing. There could be 
some scholarship fund given out to applicants such as Boy/Girl Scouts through an application 
process. Another action step is to construct/allocate more space.  
 
Policy FS13: Support volunteer members of public boards and committees with training, 
conflict resolution/mediation services, and legal support.  
 
Ms. Waygan added participation on these committees requires a lot of time and knowledge of 
policy. Actions would be specific trainings boards would receive. She would also like to include 
the MIDC (Inclusion and Diversity Committee) as a resource as well as Human Resources that 
offers guidance.  
 
Policy FS14: Increase youth participation in local governance with integration of activities with 
other youth systems, such as school and youth groups.  
 
Ms. Waygan stated if 20% of the population is youth there should be 20% representation. They 
should establish a town youth committee.   
 
Policy FS15: Provide recreational programming and facilities that nurtures youth curiosity and 
opportunity as well as adult learning in a variety of disciplines consistent with local, state, 
and/or national trends.   
 
Policy FS16: Lead by example and maintain Mashpee buildings and facilities consistent with 
community character and construct new facilities in locations that are consistent with other 
planning goals and priorities that enhance community pride and the visual quality of the built 
environment.   
 



  Town of Mashpee                                     Planning Board  
                      16 Great Neck Road North  
                      Mashpee, Massachusetts 02649 

8 
 

Ms. Waygan made a note for Action FS8, when considering a new website for the town she 
thinks that should include a dedicated staff person. There is mention of a Communication 
Director, propose that person update and monitor the website inclusive of press releases.  

 
Natural Resources  
Goal NR1: Ensure Mashpee’s wildlife and wildlife habitats, both terrestrial and aquatic, are of 
highest quality and thriving in an unpolluted clean environment.  
 
Ms. Waygan noted thriving in harmony with the built environment for the rest of time is a policy. 
She elaborated we want to ensure we have high quality, clean, and unpolluted habitats for our 
wildlife. She wants a policy to say the built environment doesn’t degrade our natural 

environment. It might be climate change, it won’t always be the built environment if we were to 
narrow the goal. Mr. Lehrer will contemplate the impacts of the built environment. There was a 
lot of discussion re: how this goal was worded.    
 
Mr. Oakley added there is only one real goal and that is our Natural Resources are the best 
they can be. Ms. Waygan agreed to add that as a goal, in addition to what is also here, the 
environment is of highest quality and unpolluted.  
 
Goal NR2: Never will any Mashpee resident, community member, or visitor not be able to 
enjoy equitable access to pristine natural resources in Mashpee such as drinking water, 
healthy surface water bodies, estuaries, beaches, ancient and public ways to water.  
 
Goal NR3: Be true stewards of the land alongside the Mashpee Wampanoag Tribe through 
shared cultural, environmental, and social prosperity.  
 
Mr. Lehrer inquired about coastal resiliency in the sustainability chapter being a redundancy 
and if that adds or retracts value.  
 
Vice- Chair handed the meeting over to Clerk Mike Richardson at 6:20p.m.  
 
Mr. Lehrer would like to make this chapter less water quality focused and then reference the 
chapter on water quality. He definitely will not be repeating actions.  
 
Policy NR1: Mr. Lehrer specifically related this policy to reconcile the original goal which is the 
reality that we live here. He would suggest adding references to the built environment and high 
quality and unpolluted to this policy.  
 



  Town of Mashpee                                     Planning Board  
                      16 Great Neck Road North  
                      Mashpee, Massachusetts 02649 

9 
 

Mr. Lehrer wants to limit discussion specific to water quality actions and focusing on other 
natural resources like beaches, wetlands, dunes, shellfish, fisheries, freshwater marshes, 
saltwater marshes, vernal pools, etc. He prefer water quality section be referenced and make 
this section less water focused.  
 
Policy NR3: Prioritize the preservation and enhancement of ancient ways and ancient ways to 
water. (Ms. Waygan noted earlier this is two different things, it should say ancient ways and 
public ways to water). 
  
Policy NR4: Protect the aboriginal rights of the Wampanoag people for fishing, hunting, and 
gathering in and on Mashpee water and lands by nurturing collaborative opportunities to 
educate the community about Wampanoag history on this land.  
 
Mr. Lehrer expanded this a little bit. He thinks part of the protection of the rights is that anyone 
who lives and works in the town needs to develop some sort of understanding of what that 
means and what aboriginal rights are and why they are important to protect. An action in this 
should be added about easements and reintroduction of culturally significant vegetation. There 
is an educational component but Native people have an easement across all lands. There is 
an obligation by the town that residents understand these rights. Mr. Oakley noted the 
traditional ecological knowledge of ancestors passing down through generations, which is 
different from modern western science.   

 
Policy NR5: Maintain and enhance cross-sector collaborations such as with educational 
institutions and research organizations to bolster water quality sampling programs and 
reporting.  Moved to Water Quality section.  
 
Policy NR5: Maximize the productivity of Mashpee’s shellfisheries for recreational, commercial, 
and municipal aquaculture and promote shell fishing aquaculture, especially in areas with 
impacted water quality.  
 
Policy NR6: Reduce pollutant and nutrient loads in Mashpee’s natural systems.  
 
Policy NR7: Maintain navigational channels for mariner safety but also for stream and tidal 
flow.  
 
Mr. Lehrer alluded to the Poppy Spit, that a lot of people say the velocity at which water 
streams through the channel provides a flushing for the bay. We are not sure if it has ever 
been modeled what it would mean in terms of water quality, if the spit were to go away. Many 
say before the spit water quality was better, but that was before 11,000 septic tanks.  



  Town of Mashpee                                     Planning Board  
                      16 Great Neck Road North  
                      Mashpee, Massachusetts 02649 

10 
 

Mr. Lehrer felt any mention of navigational channels would be more appropriate for Municipal 
Facilities & Services. There doesn’t seem to be a consistent scientific answer to the question. 
One theory is existence of the spit creates the water pull out of the bay than if it were just open 
to the ocean. Mr. Oakley noted it was not directly open it just had a second opening and it was 
thought back then water quality was better. He feels that nourishing the spit so much provides 
excess sand sediment which affects water quality. Mr. Lehrer stated maintenance of channels 
will be left in Natural Resources for now.  
 
Policy NR8: Maximize funding opportunities for projects focused on Natural Resource 
protection.  
 
Policy NR9: Limit new development or expansion of structures in 100 year flood plain.  
 
Policy NR10: Acquire as much land area as possible in the flood plain for open space 
protection. Mr. Lehrer commented DNR would have an action supporting that where we 
identify and seek to get titles to marsh properties on private lands.  
 
Policy NR11: Prioritize coastal habitat restoration projects and enhance investments in green 
infrastructure. Mr. Lehrer noted an action for this could be to evaluate the Poppy Spit. He 
would love to see a model of what would happen to water quality if it were open to ocean flow.  
 
Policy NR12: Regularly evaluate regulatory mechanisms designed to protect the natural 
systems and modify whenever conditions necessitate.  
 
TOWN PLANNER REPORT  
HPP  
The document is out for Public Comment, that period closes on March 11th. The Affordable 
Housing Committee meets on March 12th. It had two or three comments. 
 
Tree Bylaw Update   
There was a tree remove at Windchime, 33 trees. Removal was authorized for all of them and 
replacements were required for 13, with replacement plan. The scope of their tree removal is a 
couple hundred thousand dollars. The Board has never authorized tree removal without 
replacements. Mr. Lehrer disregarded trees that were not consistent with the Tree Bylaw and 
replacements were not required for already deceased trees. If they were visible from public 
right of way a replacement was required. The 13 trees are allowed to be planted over 3 or 4 
years. They need to submit a plan to Mr. Lehrer by the beginning of September for first round 
of planting in the fall.  
 



  Town of Mashpee                                     Planning Board  
                      16 Great Neck Road North  
                      Mashpee, Massachusetts 02649 

11 
 

A press release for the Tree Bylaw will go out this week commencing enforcement by April 1st.  
 

BOARD MEMBER COMMITTEE REPORTS  
Cape Cod Commission-    No Report  
Charter Review Committee-    No Report  
Community Preservation  
Committee-      No Report  
Design Review-      No Report  
Plan Review-      No Report  
Environmental Oversight  
Committee-  Met last Monday, currently working on mission 

statement, goals, and vision. DNR is applying for 
Coastal Zone Grant for coastal resilience for beach 
nourishment. The Tribe is hosting an emergency 
response training with county officials, DNR, and 
other stakeholder groups.  

Historic District Commission-  No Report  
 
 
 
ADJOURNMENT  
MOTION: 
Mr. Balzarini made a motion to adjourn the meeting of the Planning Board at 6:41p.m. 
Seconded by Mr. Oakley. All in favor.   

 
 
Next Meeting:  Wednesday, March 20, 2024 @ 7:00p.m.  
 
 
 
 
Respectfully Submitted,  
 
 

 
Christine M. MacDonald  
Board Secretary  
 
 



  Town of Mashpee                                     Planning Board  
                      16 Great Neck Road North  
                      Mashpee, Massachusetts 02649 

12 
 

LIST OF DOCUMENTS 
Additional documents may be available in the Planning Department.  

- Memo from Health Agent, Zach Seabury, Regarding Zoning Bylaw for “Personal Kennel”  
- January 2024 Discharge Monitoring Report for South Cape Village – N= 4.1  
- Notices for Towns of Barnstable, Falmouth, and Sandwich  



kleslie
Typewritten Text

kleslie
Typewritten Text
7:10 PM PHN - 275 QUINAQUISSET

kleslie
Typewritten Text

kleslie
Typewritten Text



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Mashpee Planning Board 

Public Hearing Notice 
 

 
Pursuant to Massachusetts General Laws, Chapter 40A Section 11, the Mashpee Planning 

Board will hold a public hearing on Wednesday, March 1, 2023 at 7:10PM at the 

Mashpee Town Hall, 16 Great Neck Road North, to consider an application from 

Southworth Mashpee Properties LLC, property owner, to modify the Willowbend 

Country Club Special Permit.  The applicant proposes to construct a 14-unit single family 

cottage community immediately contiguous to the Willowbend Golf Course at 275 

Quinaquisset Avenue (Map 69 Block 32). The existing single-family dwelling is 

proposed for demolition. With these changes the total unit count for the Willowbend 

project would be increased to 287 if the Board authorizes the annexation of 275 

Quinaquisset into the Willowbend Special Permit as allowed. 287 dwelling units is the 

maximum number of dwelling units authorized under the Special Permit. All units will be 

connected to and served by the existing privately owned wastewater treatment plant 

which serves the entire Willowbend project.  

 

Submitted by: 

 

Mary E. Waygan 

Mashpee Planning Board 

 

Publication dates: Friday, February 10, 2023    

Friday, February 17, 2023 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 













kleslie
Typewritten Text
NEW BUSINESS



 

Terrie M. Cook                                                     Office of the Town Manager                              
      Administrative Assistant                                                              Mashpee Town Hall 

       (508) 539-1401                       16 Great Neck Road North 

      tmcook@mashpeema.gov                                           Mashpee, MA 02649

              

 
 

 

 

 
MEMORANDUM 
 
 TO:  Members of the Planning Board 
  CC: Town Manager, Town Planner 
   
 FROM: Terrie Cook – Administrative Assistant to the Town Manager   
   
 DATE:  February 23, 2024 
 
 RE: 2024 May Town Meeting Zoning Bylaw and Road Taking Warrant Articles  
  
 

 
 
The 2024 May Town Meeting Zoning Bylaw and Road Taking Warrant Articles (Draft #2) are attached 
for your reference and discussion.   
 

- Articles 24 Zoning Bylaw article submitted by the Planning Board 
- Article 28 is a road taking article submitted by petition 

 
Article numbers are “subject to change” 
 
 
Thank you. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

mailto:tmcook@mashpeema.gov


 

Article numbers are subject to change 
 
Article 24    
To see if the Town will vote to amend Section 174-25 (B)(18) of the Mashpee Zoning Bylaw Table of Use 

regulations by adding the letters “SP” in the column identified as I-1 as follows: 

(18) Indoor recreation facilities 
such as bowling alleys, 
miniature golf, batting 
cages, computerized golf 
or similar simulated sports, 
video games, billiards, 
aerobics, health clubs, 
dance or gymnastics 
studios, skating rinks, 
indoor go kart facilities, 
swimming pools, tennis or 
racquet clubs etc. by 
Special Permit from the 
Planning Board.  

Residential Commercial Industrial 

R-3 R-5 C-1 C-2 C-3 I-1 

--- --- SP SP SP SP 

Submitted by the Planning Board 

Explanation: This Article would authorize Indoor Recreational Facilities in the I-1 Zoning District by Special 

Permit. Currently, indoor recreation facilities are authorized in only the Commercial Zoning Districts.  

Article 28                                                                                                                                                                                    
 
To see if the Town will vote to accept the layouts as public ways of CHICKADEE ROAD, DEBBIE LANE, 
MANITOBA ROAD, METACOMET ROAD, NEHOIDEN ROAD, NESHOBE ROAD, PONTIAC ROAD, SAMOSET 
ROAD, WAMESIT ROAD and WHIPPOORWILL CIRCLE, as shown on plans entitled “SOUTH CAPE ESTATES 
ROAD TAKING PLAN,” in Mashpee, MA (Barnstable County), dated May 31, 2023 and prepared by Cape & 
Islands Engineering, which layouts shall have been filed in the Office of the Town Clerk not later than 
seven days prior to the date of vote hereunder, and to authorize the Select Board to acquire by gift, 
purchase, or eminent domain taking any land necessary for the purposes of such ways as so laid out, and 
to appropriate the sum of $ 2,761,630.00 to the CHICKADEE ROAD, DEBBIE LANE, MANITOBA ROAD, 
METACOMET ROAD, NEHOIDEN ROAD, NESHOBE ROAD, PONTIAC ROAD, SAMOSET ROAD, WAMESIT 
ROAD and WHIPPOORWILL CIRCLE Roadways Account, and to raise said appropriation, the Treasurer, 
with the approval of the Select Board, be authorized to borrow at one time, or from time to time, under 
and pursuant to Chapter 44 Section 7 or 8, or any other enabling authority for such purchase or taking 
and layout, including costs of constructing such ways, and legal financing, and other costs incidental and 
related thereto, and further authorize the Select Board to assess betterments to the owners of the land 
abutting the ways. Any premium received by the Town upon the sale of any bonds or notes approved by 
this vote, less any such premium applied to the payment of the costs of issuance of such bonds or notes, 
may be applied to the payment of costs approved by this vote in accordance with Chapter 44, Section 20 
of the General Laws, thereby reducing the amount authorized to be borrowed to pay such costs by a like 
amount, or take any other action relating thereto. 

Submitted by Petition  

(Lead Petitioner – Darien Homer) 



 

Explanation: This article authorizes the Town to complete the private to public road conversion process 
for CHICKADEE ROAD, DEBBIE LANE, MANITOBA ROAD, METACOMET ROAD, NEHOIDEN ROAD, NESHOBE 
ROAD, PONTIAC ROAD, SAMOSET ROAD, WAMESIT ROAD and WHIPPOORWILL CIRCLE. 

 



Town of Mashpee Planning Board 
 16 Great Neck Road North 
 Mashpee, MA 02649 
 

1 
 

MASHPEE PLANNING BOARD  

PUBLIC HEARING NOTICE 

 

*Broadcast Live on Local Cable Channel 18* 

*Streamed Live on the Town of Mashpee Website:  https://www.mashpeema.gov/channel-18* 

 
Pursuant to Massachusetts General Laws, Chapter 40A, Section 5 the Mashpee Planning Board will hold 
a public hearing on Wednesday, April 17, 2024 at 7:10 p.m. from the Mashpee Town Hall, 16 Great Neck 
Road North in the Waquoit Meeting Room to review the following zoning articles proposed for action at 
the May 6, 2024 Town Meeting.  
 
Warrant Article ___: 
To see if the Town will vote to amend Section 174-25 (B)(18) of the Mashpee Zoning Bylaw Table of 
Use regulations by adding the letters “SP” in the column identified as I-1 as follows: 
 
 
This Article would authorize Indoor Recreational Facilities in the I-1 Zoning District by Special Permit.  
Currently, indoor recreation facilities are authorized in only the Commercial Zoning Districts. 
 
 
The full text of these Articles may be reviewed in the Office of the Town Manager/Select Board and 
Planning Department. 
 
Submitted by: 

Karen D. Faulkner, Chair 
Mashpee Planning Board 
 
Publication dates:  March 22, 2024 
       March 29, 2024 

https://www.mashpeema.gov/channel-18*












Town of Mashpee Planning Board 
 16 Great Neck Road North 
 Mashpee, MA 02649 
 

FORM E 
RELEASE OF COVENANT AGREEMENT 

 
The undersigned, being a majority of the Planning Board of the Town of Mashpee, Barnstable 
County, Massachusetts, hereby releases 
 
Lot(s) __Reserved Recreation and Green Area (no lot number)___ shown on a plan entitled 

Conaumet Highlands Subdivision Plan of Land in Mashpee, Mass by William C. Nye, R.L.S. dated 

__March 1, 1972__, from the provisions of a covenant agreement dated  May 3, 1972   .  

Record owner as of _August 19, 2020   __Christine Marano________________________ 

                                                               Date                                                          Name of Owner 

 
Executed as a sealed instrument this _20th__day of March, 2024. 
 
Chairman ________________________________________ 
 

________________________________________ 
 
________________________________________ 
 
________________________________________ 
 
________________________________________ 

 
COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS 
 

County of Barnstable 
 
On this _______ day of _______________________, 2024, before me, the undersigned notary 
public, personally appeared 
_______________________________________________________________, proved to me 
through satisfactory evidence of identification, which were 
______________________________________, to be the person whose name is signed on the 
preceding or attached document, and acknowledged to me that he/she signed it voluntarily for 
its stated purpose. 
 
_________________________________________ 
Notary Public 
Commonwealth of Massachusetts 
 
My Commission expires ___________________________, 20______. 



kleslie
Typewritten Text
OLD BUSINESS

kleslie
Typewritten Text

kleslie
Typewritten Text



 

 
Notes: Goals and policies have been refined and reorganized. Actions still need to be re-evaluated. 
Note that the following were listed as policies which are more appropriately listed under actions so 
they’ve been deleted from the Policies section and will need to be re-introduced as actions We may 
want to consider a policy that supports these human services related actions. 1.) Increase 
Substance Abuse Support Programs 2. ) Enhance Suicide Prevention programing and educational 
awareness. 3. Identify a site to be used for materials storage and develop the materials storage 
site. (DPW Related) 

 

 

Goals, Policies, & Actions 

Goals 

Goal FS-1:    Cultivate healthy and productive civil discourse by maximizing inclusion and diversity in civic life. 
 

Goal FS-2:    Provide the safest, most equitable, and technologically advanced municipal facilities and school facilities that 
nurture community and civic engagement and that meet the needs of projected student populations and that maximize 
student potential and educational opportunities. 

Goal FS-4:    Make Mashpee the safest possible community where all community members can thrive without fear of 
crime or suffering created by fire or other man-made or natural disasters. 

Goal FS-5:    . Maintain financial stability and AAA bond rating. 

 Goal FS-6:    Nurture and enhance continued education and life-long learning for Mashpee’s adult community. 
 

Goal FS-7:    Ensure Mashpee community members are as physically, mentally, and emotionally healthy as possible.   

Goal FS-9:    Provide the most accessible and interconnected trail network in the Commonwealth throughout Mashpee’s 
conservation lands to maximize safe enjoyment of nature and the outdoors. 
. 

Goal FS-10: Improve, maintain, and monitor, Mashpee ponds, coastal waterways and coastline in pristine condition that 
allows all users and adjacent property owners to benefit from its natural beauty without conflict.  

Goal FS-11:    Be a leader (didn’t like “be a leader” what is alternative?) in sustainable solid waste and wastewater 
management to remove or mitigate impacts of hazardous waste and nutrient pollution on natural systems.  

Goal FS-11:    Make Mashpee the most operationally efficient municipality in the Commonwealth.  

Policies 

Policy FS-1:    Invest in new technologies or best practices at the Mashpee Transfer station that maximize operational 
efficiency and minimize potential environmental impacts of the facility’s operation  

Policy FS-2:    Continue to invest in a community policing model that protect Mashpee residents, visitors, and their 
property from crime whilst nurturing the public’s trust 

Policy FS-3:    Ensure that the police department and fire department staffing levels and facilities can appropriately 
accommodate consistent enforcement of local, state and federal laws, rapid response times, high quality 
care and protection, and minimize loss and suffering due to crime, fire, and other man-made and natural 
disasters. 

Policy FS-3:    Ensure that municipal departments, notably and specifically the  inspectional services: Health, Building, and 
Conservation are adequately staffed to accommodate consistent enforcement of local state  and federal 
laws within their jurisdictions to protect the health, safety and welfare of people, property and the 
environment. 

Commented [EL1]: DEI, communications 

Commented [EL2]: Schools 

Commented [EL3]: Public Safety 

Commented [EL4]: Finances 

Commented [EL5]: Recreation/Library/CoA 

Commented [EL6]: Public Health and Human Services  

Commented [EL7]: Conservation and Recreation 

Commented [EL8]: Natural Resources/Harbormaster and 
Recreation 

Commented [EL9]: Solid Waste Management 

Commented [EL10]: Solid Waste 

Commented [EL11]: Police 

Commented [EL12]: Fire 



Policy FS-4:   Increase collaboration and communications internally between Town departments and externally with the 
broader community by maximizing in-person and virtual opportunities for civic engagement.( CIVIC Reach 
and tech investmenets are actions 

Policy FS-5:    Enhance, maintain, and/or provide any and all needed municipal infrastructure and services needed to 
support the local economy, mobility of people and goods, the natural environment, and public health and wellness.  

Policy FS-6:  Ensure that the development and operation of school facilities and programs are coordinated to the 
                      maximum extent possible with other municipal agencies. 

Policy FS-7:  Maximize non-property tax funding sources/grant funding for infrastructure and new municipal buildings and 
facilities as well as school building and facilities by ensuring awareness  of those opportunities and preparedness for 
success.  

Policy FS-8:  Foster cross-sector collaboration and cooperation to develop a common understanding of health and human 
service needs, priorities and appropriate resource allocation to critical areas of need such as substance abuse programs, 
homelessness prevention, child care, etc.. 

Policy FS-9:    Maintain and enhance cross-sector collaborations with educational institutions and research 
                        organizations to bolster programs such as water quality sampling programs and reporting. 

Policy FS-10:  Prioritize collaboration and communication with Mashpee Wampanoag Tribe on all matters. 

Policy FS-11:  Ensure critical facilities are located near populated centers while promoting equitable access to 
                        underserved communities. 

Policy FS-12:  Increase the supply and availability of public meeting space for Town Boards and Committees, 
                        working groups, and for Mashpee-based non-profit service organizations such as Girls Scouts, Boy 
                        Scouts, etc. 

Policy FS-13:  Support volunteer members of public boards and committees with training, conflict resolution/mediation 
                        services, and legal support. 

Policy FS-14:  Increase youth participation in local governance with integration of activities with other youth systems, 
                        such as school and youth groups. 

Policy FS-15: Provide recreational programming and facilities that nurtures youth curiosity and opportunity as well as 
adult learning in a variety of disciplines consistent with local, state, and/or national trends. 

Policy FS-16: Lead by example and maintain Mashpee buildings and facilities consistent with community character and 
construct new facilities in locations that are consistent with other planning goals and priorities and that enhance 
community pride and the visual quality of the built environment. 

Policy FS-17: Share municipal services and facilities between Mashpee Town Agencies and with the Mashpee 
Wampanoag Tribe whenever possible to maximize efficiency and collaboration. (Now feels duplicative of FS-6) 

Policy FS-18: Conduct financial analysis and modeling when evaluating existing programs and services and when seeking 
to establish new programs and services.  

Actions 
     

Timeframe Responsibility Cost 

Town Hall 

FS-1. Remedy user conflicts 
within waterways consistent 
with the DNHRMP.   

   
 

S 
DNR 
BOS 
WC 

$ 

FS-2. Assess Town’s staff 
capacity by procuring a 
consultant to analyze the 
administrative code and 
organizational chart to make 
recommendations regarding 
personnel capacity. 

    
 

S 
TM 

BOS 
HR 

$ 

Commented [EL13]: Communications/Town Hall 

Commented [EL14]: Schools 

Commented [EL15]: All facilities 

Commented [EL16]: Human Services  

Commented [EL17]: Move to Coastal/Natural Resources 



FS-3. Conduct parking needs 
assessment for Town Hall and 
modify parking layout as 
recommended. 

 
 

   S 
PD 
PB 

$ 

FS-4. Construct a unisex locker 
room and shower facility for 
Town Employees. 

    
 

M 
BOS 
DPW 
TM 

$$ 

FS-5. Add EV charging stations 
in Town Parking Facilities as 
discussed in the Transportation 
and Circulation Element of this 
plan. 

 
  

  O 

BOS 
DPW 
EOC 
TM 

$$$ 

FS-6. Construct solar canopies 
in municipal parking areas 
where feasible as discussed in 
the Sustainability element of 
this plan. 

 
  

  M 
DPW 
EOC 
ER 

$$$ 

FS-7. Audio/Visual overhaul of 
Waquoit Meeting Room 
system with most advanced 
technology that will better 
facilitate remote and other 
alternate forms of 
participation. 

    
 

S 
BOS 

IT 
TM 

$ 

FS- 8. Consider a new website 
host platform. 

    
 

S 
TM 

BOS 
IT 

 

FS-9. Implement 
recommended stormwater 
improvements within the 
Santuit Pond Watershed as 
recommended by the Fuss & 
O'Neill MVP Action Grant. 

 
 

 
  S 

DNR 
BOS 
ConC 
DPW 
EOC 

$$ 

FS-10. Construct wastewater 
treatment plant and all lift 
stations and phases as needed 
in accordance with the 
Watershed Nitrogen 
management plan. 

 
 

   L 

BOS 
DPW 

SC 
TM 

$$$ 

FS-11. Identify the most 
appropriate sites to establish 
Aquaculture Development 
Zones consistent with the 
Department of Natural 
Resources Harbor 
Management Plan. 

  
   S 

DNR 
WC 

$ 

Commented [EL18]: Be more specific. Feasibility study 
need to be fone? What improvements need to be made? 
What’s 

Commented [EL19]: RFP to evaluate potential of 
competitors? 

Commented [EL20]: Coastal/Natural Resources? 

Commented [EL21]: Coastal/Natural Resources 



FS-12. Continue to investigate 
and inventory the legal status 
of all known public landings 
and access to coastal water 
and great ponds to develop an 
access plan. 

 
 

   O 
DNR 
WC 

$ 

FS-13. Purchase parcels, where 
feasible, to enhance public 
access to water or create new 
sites for public landings. 

 
 

   L 
BOS 
DNR 
TM 

$$$ 

FS-14. Create Town 
information hub (i.e., “Get to 
Know Mashpee), staffed with 
volunteers 

    
 

S 
BOS 
TM 
IT 

$ 

FS-15. Develop emergency 
communication system 
between Town and media. 

    
 

M 
TM 

BOS 
IT 

$ 

FS-16. Update Town website 
and social media presence to 
enhance user-friendliness and 
communication 

    
 

S 
TM 
IT 

$ 

FS-17. Designated moorings 
for commercial entities may 
alleviate this issue and remove 
a significant barrier to entry for 
the burgeoning aquaculture 
industry especially 

 
 

   M PB $ 

FS-18. Increase enforcement 
and identify a more 
streamlined solution to protect 
diggers from speeding boats 
and recreational boats that 
stray from channels. 

    
 

S 
HM 

DNR 
TM 

$ 

FS-19. Hire a Town grant-
writer. 

    
 

S 
TM 

BOS 
HR 

$$ 

FS-20. Hire a Town 
communication director 

    
 

M 
TM 

BOS 
HR 

$$ 

FS-21. Increase public 
participation opportunities 
regarding government 
processes 

    
 

S 
TM 

BOS 
$ 

FS-22. Design and build 
community center for 
educational programs, gym, 
pools, and senior services 

 
 

  
 

L 

BOS 
BD 
CA 

DPW 

$$$ 

Commented [EL22]: Natural Resources/Coastal 
Resources 

Commented [EL23]: Natural Resources/Coastal 
Resources 

Commented [EL24]: Be more specific 

Commented [EL25]: Add actions such as parcel ID, 
feasibility study, procurement, construction 



RD 
TM 

FS-23. Offer additional options 
for internet and cell services 

 
 

  
 

M 
IT 

BOS 
$ 

FS-24. Inspect, maintain, and 
upgrade septic systems. 

 
 

  
 

S DPW $$ 

FS-25. Consider 
redevelopment of DPW 
Building with a LEED Certified 
Net Zero accreditation. 

 
 

   L 

DPW 
BOS 
ER 
TM 

$ 

FS-26. Add at least 8,000 
square feet of additional 
garage space with at least 
some portion of that additional 
capacity heated. 

 
 

   L 

DPW 
BOS 
BD 
TM 

$$$ 

FS-27. Build an additional 
1,600 square foot bay into the 
maintenance garage. 

 
 

   L 
DPW 

PB 
BD 

$$$ 

FS-28. Install audio/visual 
capabilities into the Event 
Room and Zoom Meeting tech 
in the conference room of the 
library. 

    
 

S 

BOS 
IT 
L 

TM 

$ 

FS-29. Install publicly 
accessible EV Charging 
stations in library parking lot. 

 
  

  M 

BOS 
DPW 

L 
TM 

$$ 

FS-30. Lease or purchase 
electric vehicles for use by 
Library Staff. 

 
  

 
 

M 
BOS 

L 
TM 

$$ 

FS-31. Redevelop 
Harbormaster Shack with a 
modern, climate resilient, 
facility. 

 
  

  M 

BOS 
BD 

DNR 
TM 

$$ 

FS-32. Identify a location for 
and construct the Fire 
Department’s north station. 

 
 

   M 

BOS 
BD 
FD 
TM 

$$$ 

FS-33. Consider expanding 
Kids Klub into a second 
location. 

 
 

  
 

M 
BOS 
RD 
TM 

$ 

FS-34. Explore the potential 
for childcare tuition assistance 
for Town Employees at the 
Kids Klub. 

   
  

S 
BOS 
RD 
TM 

$$ 

Commented [EL26]: Municipal Broadband? Replicate 
action from Economic Development 

Commented [EL27]: This seems silly to put here 

Commented [EL28]: Be more specific like Community 
Center above 

Commented [EL29]: Be more specific – Parcel ID, 
feasibility, procurement, construction 

Commented [EL30]: Same criticism. Add actions 
regarding personnel and equipment needs consistent with 
state manfate and CIP 

Commented [EL31]: Conduct Needs Assessment. 
Consider going to MPS. Parcel ID/Building ID, Staffing etc. 



FS-35. Assess the viability and 
feasibility of creating a 
Communications Manager or 
similar title to manage 
information releases from the 
Town on all social media 
platforms and Town website. 

    
 

  $ 

FS-36. Establish a Mashpee 
Youth Committee with 
assistance from MPS.  

    
 

  $ 

FS-38. Move recreation facility 
to community center. 

    
 

L RD $ 

FS-39. Open new childcare 
facility at 505 Main Street. 

    
 

M 

HS 
BOS 
CCF 

R 

$$ 

FS-41. Re-establish regular in-
person drop-in nights with the 
Substance Abuse Task Force. 

    
 

S 
HS 
PD 

$ 

FS-42. Offer NARCAN Training 
through Human Services 
Department. 

    
 

S 
HS 
FD 
PD 

$ 

 

 

Needs:  

 

PD related actions 

Schools – ask hope and patty for latest strategic plan 

Archives? Reach out to Richard DeSorgher 

Senior Center? 

Library – Generator! 

DPW – Double check with Catherine 

Harbormaster 

Inspectional Services 

 

 

 



kleslie
Typewritten Text
CORRESPONDENCE

kleslie
Typewritten Text













 

Understanding Coastal Flood Zones  

Background: Proposed revisions to the Massachusetts Wetlands Protection Act (WPA) regulations (see 
310 CMR 10.36) published on December 22, 2023 include performance standards for Land Subject to 
Coastal Storm Flowage (LSCSF), which promote resilience by preserving and restoring the natural 
floodplain functions of this area. In certain flood zones, proposed LSCSF standards require additional 
protections, such as elevating structures on open piles to preserve floodplain function and prevent 
damage (see MassDEP companion fact sheet on LSCSF and Building Code Standards, accessible at 
https://www.mass.gov/regulations/310-CMR-1000-wetlands-protection-act-regulations#proposed-
amendments-public-comment). 

Coastal Flood Zones (Example Diagram) 

Land Subject to Coastal Storm Flowage (LSCSF) = FEMA Flood Zones V and A (on this example diagram) 

Limit of Moderate Wave Action (LiMWA) separates Moderate and Minimal Wave Action Areas (MoWA and 
MiWA) within FEMA’s A Zones. The LiMWA is shown as a line with triangles (triangles point towards higher hazard 
area). The LiMWA is available for the entire coast of Massachusetts on the FEMA Map Service Center website: 
msc.fema.gov.   

 
How to Identify Zones in the LSCSF from FEMA Maps  

LSCSF 

White lines = flood 
zone boundaries 

LiMWA = boundary 
between MoWA and 
MiWA. Triangles 
point towards higher 
hazard area. 

Zone AE and VE 
elevations (EL) are 
Base Flood 
Elevation. 

Note: In some cases, 
there is no MoWA as 
the LiMWA divides 
Zone V and MiWA 
only.  

 

LiMWA 

FEMA Flood Zone 
Boundary between V & A 

MiWA 

MoWA 

Area with 
no MoWA  

LSCSF 

FEMA Flood Zone Boundary  
between AE 16 feet & AE 15 feet 

 

https://www.mass.gov/doc/310-cmr-10-wetlands-protection/download
https://url.avanan.click/v2/___https:/www.mass.gov/regulations/310-CMR-1000-wetlands-protection-act-regulations%23proposed-amendments-public-comment___.YXAzOmNvbXByZWhlbnNpdmVlbnZpcm9ubWVudGFsOmE6bzpiNjkwY2FkYzEwYjdiMGYwZGQ1MTNkZDFkYjk5ZDhjMjo2OjEyYTM6YmYyYTFkNDI1YTUzNDkyZWVlNWI0YzYzNDI1MDQ2N2IxY2ZiYTk5MDg5MzVlYWYzYzk0ZmMyNzIwMjI2MGE3NTpoOlQ
https://url.avanan.click/v2/___https:/www.mass.gov/regulations/310-CMR-1000-wetlands-protection-act-regulations%23proposed-amendments-public-comment___.YXAzOmNvbXByZWhlbnNpdmVlbnZpcm9ubWVudGFsOmE6bzpiNjkwY2FkYzEwYjdiMGYwZGQ1MTNkZDFkYjk5ZDhjMjo2OjEyYTM6YmYyYTFkNDI1YTUzNDkyZWVlNWI0YzYzNDI1MDQ2N2IxY2ZiYTk5MDg5MzVlYWYzYzk0ZmMyNzIwMjI2MGE3NTpoOlQ
https://url.avanan.click/v2/___https:/msc.fema.gov/portal/home___.YXAzOmNvbXByZWhlbnNpdmVlbnZpcm9ubWVudGFsOmE6bzpiNDY1ZTg4YTRhMDc1NjQxYmY5M2VjMzBmZmIwZjAyZjo2OjczYTE6MzFjZTlmZDQxOGM3MTEwMjJjMTE5MjYxYzFkOGY0NWRkODc5ODFmNzdjNjBmZTFiYmMzYmY1YjU2MDUwM2YxNjpwOkY


 

Comparison of LSCSF and Building Code Performance Standards  
Background: Proposed revisions to the Massachusetts Wetlands Protection Act (WPA) regulations (see 
310 CMR 10.36) published on December 22, 2023 include performance standards for Land Subject to 
Coastal Storm Flowage (LSCSF), which promote resilience by preserving and restoring the natural 
floodplain functions of this area. In certain flood zones, proposed LSCSF standards require additional 
protections, such as elevating structures on open piles to preserve floodplain function and prevent 
damage. A comparison of the proposed LSCSF standards and the current and proposed Building Code 
Standards are outlined in the table below. 

LSCSF Area1 Proposed LSCSF Standard2 Current Building Code 
Standard 

Proposed draft 10th Edition 
Building Code Standard 

Velocity Zone 
 

(Area within the 
Special Flood Hazard 

Area where  
base flood wave 

heights exceed 3 feet) 

New Development 

Prohibited 
Elevate structures on open 

piles above FEMA BFE3 plus 
at least 2 feet freeboard4 

Elevate structures on open 
piles above the FEMA BFE3 

plus at least 3 feet freeboard4 

Redevelopment (substantial damage or improvement) 
• Elevate structures on open piles. 
• Must allow flood water to flow 

unobstructed under structure 
during 1% annual chance storm 
with min of 2 feet above 1% 
annual chance BFE6 

Same as new development Same as new development 

Moderate Wave 
Action Zone 

(MoWA) 
 

(Coastal A Zone; the 
portion of the Special 

Flood Hazard Area with 
base flood wave 

heights between 1.5 
and 3 feet) 

New Development 
• Elevate structures on open piles. 
• Must allow flood water to flow 

unobstructed under the structure 
during 1% annual chance storm 
with min of 2 feet above 1% 
annual chance BFE3, 6 

Elevate structures on open 
piles or solid foundation 

above the FEMA BFE3 plus 
at least 1 feet freeboard 5 

Elevate structures on open 
piles above the FEMA BFE3 

plus at least 3 feet freeboard 5 

Redevelopment (substantial damage or improvement) 

Same as new development Same as new development Same as new development7 

Minimal Wave 
Action Zone 

(MiWA) 
 

(A and AE Zone; the 
portion of the Special 

Flood Hazard Area with 
base flood wave 

heights less than 1.5 
feet) 

New Development 
• Elevation on piles or solid 

foundation per Building Code. 
• Waves and fast-moving flood 

waters within the 100-foot Buffer 
Zone of a coastal Resource Area 
may require open piles at least 2 
feet above 1% annual chance 
BFE or open foundation3, 6 

Elevate structures on open 
piles or solid foundation 

above the FEMA BFE3 plus 
at least 1 feet freeboard 

Elevate structures on open 
piles or solid foundation above 
the FEMA BFE3 plus at least 2 

feet freeboard 

Redevelopment (substantial damage or improvement) 
Same as new development Same as new development Same as new development 

1 Land Subject to Coastal Storm Flowage (LSCSF) = Land subject to any inundation caused by coastal storms up to and including 
that caused by the 100-year storm, surge of record or storm of record, whichever is greater. 
2 Water dependent industrial uses in DPA excluded. 
3 FEMA Base Flood Elevation 
4 measured from the lowest horizontal structural member 
5 measured from the top of the lowest floor surface 
6 Two feet may be waived in rare cases. 
7 Substantial improvement to existing commercial/mixed-use muti-story buildings are not required to elevate on open piles. 
NOTE: Elevation requirements for the State Building Code have been generalized for this handout and reflect the Class 2 building 
requirements for ASCE 24-14. Class 2 is the reference standard for flood zone in Code and includes the majority of buildings and 
structures including residential, commercial, and industrial buildings. Refer to ASCE 24-14 for other design classes.  

 

https://www.mass.gov/doc/310-cmr-10-wetlands-protection/download
https://ascelibrary.org/doi/book/10.1061/asce24


 

 Storm Surge Flow Channelization 

Background: Proposed revisions to the Massachusetts Wetlands Protection Act (WPA) regulations (see 310 
CMR 10.36) published on December 22, 2023 include performance standards for Land Subject to Coastal 
Storm Flowage (LSCSF), which promote resilience by preserving and restoring natural floodplain functions.  
In certain flood zones, proposed LSCSF standards require additional protections, such as elevating 
structures on open piles.  

Flow Channelization: When coastal storm flood water flows across a natural, vegetated soil surface, it is 
slowed and can permeate into soils. In developed areas, where there are waves and moving water in 
coastal storms, changes in topography such as grading, fill, solid structures, and retaining walls can lead to 
soil erosion around or under buildings through flow channelization.  

The image above shows multiple flow channels (blue lines) between houses, caused by Hurricane Sandy in 2012. 
Structures that are not elevated, such as the house shown below, are at risk from flow channel damage. 

* Adapted from: FEMA P-942. Mitigation Assessment Team Report, Hurricane Sandy in New Jersey and New York. 2013. 

B 

A 

Preventing Flow Channelization: To prevent flow 
channelization and related infrastructure damage, 
the draft WPA standards require structures to be 
elevated on open piles in the Velocity Zone and 
Moderate Wave Action (MoWA) Zone.  

In the Minimal Wave Action Area (MiWA), it may 
be necessary to conduct a flow path analysis to 
ensure that proposed projects do not result in 
channelization and subsequent damage to 
adjacent buildings.  

Guidance for flow path analysis is currently 
being developed by MassDEP. 

A B 

https://www.mass.gov/doc/310-cmr-10-wetlands-protection/download
https://www.mass.gov/doc/310-cmr-10-wetlands-protection/download



























































	Agenda 2024.0320 ATT
	275 Quinauisset Willowbend PHN
	May 24 Memo Planning Board ATM Zoning Bylaw  and Road Taking Article DRAFT #2 
	ZoningArticlePHN_May 2024
	Windchime Request 2024.0304
	DEP Waterways Bayridge Realty
	MassDEP WPA Regs Handout 1 LSCSF Zones_02.26.2024
	MassDEP WPA Regs Handout 2 Performance Stnd Comparison_02.26.2024
	MassDEP WPA Regs Handout 3_Flow Path Analysis_02.26.2024
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page



